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INTRODUCTION

(PHASE 1)

“The committee has already determined the three main phases of its public
hearings. Beginning today we will receive submissions from the Canada
Council, the Science Council of Canada, the Medical Research Council and the
Science Secretariat of the Privy Council. We will also invite wise men from
Canada and abroad who have developed over the years a keen interest in
scientific policy. We intend during this first phase of our inquiry to concentrate
on the broad questions which must be answered as a prelude to determining
the main elements of a dynamic and effective science policy. We intend also to
consider the implications of scientific research activities for the long-term
development of our nation and the provision of a satisfying quality of life for
its citizens.

Beginning in May we will receive submissions from all the more specialized
research agencies of the federal Government, such as the National Research
Council, the Defence Research Board, the Economic Council, Atomic Energy
of Canada, and the Research Branch of the Department of Agriculture.

The third and final phase of our hearings will start, we hope, early next
fall. We will then invite representations from provincial research agencies,
universities, industry, labour, agricultural and other professional associations,
and also from individuals who may wish to appear before the committee. We
hope that all those who are interested in this broad and vital aspect of our
national policy will ask to be heard. Ultimately, of course, we will submit our
report to the Senate and the Government.”

Maurice Lamontagne
Chairman

(Extract from the Proceedings of the Special Committee on Science Policy, No. 1,
March 12th, 1968, pp. 1-2.)
iii
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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, November
2nd, 1967:

“The Honourable Senator Lamontagne, P.C., moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Gershaw:

That a Special Committee of the Senate be appointed to consider and
report upon the scientific policy of the Federal Government with the
object of appraising its priorities, its budget and its efficiency in the light
of the experience of other industrialized countries and of the require-
ments of the new scientific age and, without restricting the generality of
the foregoing, to inquire into and report upon the following:

(a) recent trends in research and development expenditures in

Canada as compared with those in other industrialized countries;
(b) research and development activities carried out by the Federal
Government in the fields of physical, life and human sciences;

(c) federal assistance to research and development activities carried
out by individuals, universities, industry and other groups in the
three scientific fields mentioned above; and

(d) the broad principles, the long-term financial requirements and

the structural organization of a dynamic and efficient scientific
policy for Canada.

That the Committee have power to engage the services of such coun-
sel and technical and clerical personnel as may be necessary for the
purpose of the inquiry; and

That the Committee have power to send for persons, papers and
records, to sit during sittings and adjournments of the Senate, and to
report from time to time.

After debate,

The Honourable Senator Flynn, P.C., moved for the Honourable Sen-
ator Phillips, seconded by the Honourable Senator Choquette, that further
debate on the motion be adjourned until the next sitting of the Senate.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, November 8th,

1967:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the debate on
the motion of the Honourable Senator Lamontagne, P.C., seconded by
the Honourable Senator Gershaw, that a Special Committee of the Senate
be appointed to consider and report upon the scientific policy of the
Federal Government.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

vii



With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator Connolly, P.C., moved, seconded by the
Honourable Senator Deschatelets, P.C.;

That the Special Committee of the Senate appointed to consider and
report upon the scientific policy of the Federal Government be composed
of the Honourable Senators Aird, Argue, Belisle, Bourget, Cameron,
Desruisseaux, Grosart, Hayes, Kinnear, Lamontagne, Lang, Leonard,
MacKenzie, McCutcheon, Phillips, Sullivan, Thompson and Yuzyk; and

That the said Committee be authorized to print such papers and
evidence from day to day as may be ordered by the Committee.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”
J. F. MAcCNEILL,

Clerk of the Senate.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, March 27, 1968:

“With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator Lamontagne, P.C., moved, seconded by the
Honourable Senator MacKenzie:

That the terms of reference of the Special Committee of the Senate
appointed to consider and report upon the scientific policy of the Federal
Government be amended: in the English language version thereof by
repealing the words “scientific policy” wherever the same therein appear
and substituting therefor the words “science policy”’; and in the French
language version thereof by repealing the words “le programme scienti-
fique” wherever the same therein appear and substituting therefor the
words “la politique scientifique”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.
ROBERT FORTIER,
Clerk of the Senate.
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REPORTS OF THE COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, December 20th, 1967.

The Special Committee of the Senate on the Scientific Policy of the Federal
Government makes its First Report as follows:

Your Committee recommends that its quorum be reduced to five (5)
members.

All which is respectfully submitted.
MAURICE LAMONTAGNE,

Chairman.

THURSDAY, February 1st, 1968.

The Special Committee of the Senate on the Scientific Policy of the Federal
Government makes its second Report as follows:

Your Committee recommends:

1. That it be empowered to adjourn from place to place; and

2. That, notwithstanding any prorogation of Parliament, the supporting
staff of the Committee shall continue in the employ of the Senate upon the
terms and conditions of their respective contracts and under the management
and direction of the honourable senator now chairman of the Committee.

All which is respectfully submitted.
MAURICE LAMONTAGNE,

Chairman.

ix
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Tuespay, March 12, 1968.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee on Science
Policy met this day at 10.00 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Lamontagne (Chairman), Argue, Bé-
lisle, Bourget, Desruisseaux, Grosart, Kinnear, Lang, MacKenzie, McCutcheon,
Sullivan, Thompson and Yuzyk—(13).

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senators Carter, In-
man, Nichol and Roebuck—(4).
In attendance:

R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel, and Chief
Clerk of Committees.

Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical Science).
Gilles Paquet, Director of Research (Human Science).

The following witnesses were heard:

THE CANADA COUNCIL:
J. A. Corry (Member)
Napoléon Leblanc (Member)
Jean Boucher (Director)
F. A. Milligan (Assistant Director)

At 12.55 the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.

Tuespay, March 12th, 1968.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee on Science
Policy met this day at 3.00 p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Lamontagne (Chairman), Aird, Argue,
Belisle, Bourget, Desruisseaux, Grosart, Kinnear, Lang, MacKenzie, McCut-
cheon, Phillips, Sullivan, Thompson and Yuzyk—(15).

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senators Carter, Denis
and Smith (Kamloops)—(3).
In attendance:

R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel and Chief
Clerk of Committees.

Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical Science)
Gilles Paquet, Director of Research (Human Science)

X



The following witness was heard:
Dr. C. J. Mackenzie, Chancellor, Carleton University, Ottawa.

At 4.55 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.

WEDNESDAY, March 13th, 1968.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee on Science
Policy met this day at 9.45 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Lamontagne (Chairman), Bélisle, Bour-
get, Desruisseaux, Grosart, Kinnear, Lang, MacKenzie, McCutcheon, Phillips,
Sullivan, Thompson and Yuzyk—(13).

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senators O’Leary (An-
tigonish-Guysborough) and Pouliot—(2).

In attendance:

Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical Science)
Gilles Paquet, Director of Research (Human Science)

The following witnesses were heard:
THE SCIENCE COUNCIL OF CANADA:
Dr. O. M. Solandt (Chairman)
Dr. H. E. Petch (Member)

At 1.00 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.

WEDNESDAY, March 13th, 1968.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee on Science
Policy met this day at 3.00 p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Lamontagne (Chairman), Argue, Bour-
get, Deschatelets, Desruisseaux, Grosart, Kinnear, Lang, MacKenzie,
McCutcheon, Phillips and Thompson.—(12)

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senator Denis.—(1)
In attendance:

Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical Science).
Gilles Paquet, Director of Research (Human Science).

The following witness was heard:

Professor V. W. Bladen, Department of Political Economy, University
of Toronto.

At 5.00 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.

xi
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TuESDAY, March 19th, 1968.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee on Science
Policy met this day at 10.00 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Lamontagne (Chairman), Aird, Belisle,
Cameron, Grosart, Hays, Kinnear, McCutcheon and Phillips. (9)

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senators Blois, Carter,
Irvine, Kickham, MacDonald (Queens), McGrand, Pouliot, Prowse and Roe-
buck. (9)

In attendance:

R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel, and Chief
Clerk of the Committees; Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical
Science) ; Gilles Paquet, Director of Research (Human Science).
The following witness was heard:

Professor P. M. S. Blackett, Advisor to the British Minister of Tech-
nology, and President of the Royal Society.

At 1.00 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.

WEDNESDAY, March 20th, 1968.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee on Science
Policy met this day at 2.30 p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Lamontagne (Chairman), Aird, Belisle,
Desruisseaux, Grosart, Hays, Kinnear, MacKenzie, McCutcheon and Sullivan.
(10)

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senators Carter, Kick-
ham, Paterson and Quart. (4)

In attendance:
Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical Science)
Gilles Paquet, Director of Research (Human Science)

At approximately 3.30 p.m., the Chairman retired due to illness and the
Honourable Senator MacKenzie was appointed Acting Chairman.

The following witness was heard:

Professor Arthur Porter,
Head, Department of Industrial Engineering,
Acting Director, Center of Culture and Technology,
University of Toronto.

At 4.40 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Acting Chairman.

THURSDAY, March 21st, 1968.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee on Science
Policy met this day at 10.00 a.m.
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Present: The Honourable Senators MacKenzie (Acting Chairman), Aird,
Belisle, Desruisseaux, Grosart, Hays, Kinnear, McCutcheon and Sullivan. (9)

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senators Gouin, Hol-
lett and Pouliot. (3)

In attendance:

R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel, and
Chief Clerk of Committees.

Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical Science)
Gilles Paquet, Director of Research (Human Science)

In the absence of the Chairman and on motion of Senator Grosart, it
was Resolved that Senator MacKenzie be elected Acting Chairman.

The following witnesses were heard:

THE SCIENCE SECRETARIAT OF THE PRIVY COUNCIL:
Dr. Robert Weir, Director.

G. T. McColm, Science Advisor.

Dr. Ray W. Jackson, Science Advisor.

At 12.45 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Acting Chairman.

THURSDAY, March 21st, 1968.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee on Science
Policy met this day at 3.30 p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators MacKenzie (Acting Chairman), Aird,
Belisle, Desruisseaux, Grosart, Hays, Kinnear, McCutcheon, Phillips and Sulli-
van. (10)

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senators Denis, Gouin,
Hollett and McGrand. (4)

In attendance:
Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical Science)
Gilles Paquet, Director of Research (Human Science)

The following witnesses were heard:

THE MEDICAL RESEARCH COUNCIL:
Dr. G. Malcolm Brown, Chairman.
Dr. G. M. LeClair, Member.

Dr. J. A. McCarter, Member.

At 5.10 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Acting Chairman.
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WEDNESDAY, April 17th, 1968.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee on Science
Policy met this day at 10.000 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Lamontagne (Chairman), Aird, Argue,
Belisle, Bourget, Cameron, Desruisseaux, Grosart, Hays, Kinnear, Lang,
Leonard, MacKenzie, McCutcheon, Phillips (Prince), Sullivan, Thompson and
Yuzyk. (18)

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senators Blois, Denis,
Fournier (De Lanaudiére), MacDonald (Queens), McGrand, O’Leary (Anti-
gonish-Guysborough) and Paterson. (7)

In attendance:

R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel and Chief
Clerk of Committees.

Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical Science)
Gilles Paquet, Director of Research (Human Science)

The following witness was heard:
Dr. Christopher Wright, Director, Institute for the Study of Science in
Human Affairs, Columbia University, New York, U.S.A.

At 12.55 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.

WEDNESDAY, April 17th, 1968.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee on Science
Policy met this day at 3.00 p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Lamontagne (Chairman), Aird, Belisle,
Bourget, Cameron, Desruisseaux, Grosart, Hays, Kinnear, Lang, Leonard, Mc-
Cutcheon, Phillips (Prince), and Thompson. (14)

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senators Carter, Mac-
Donald (Queens), McGrand and Paterson. (4)

In attendance:

R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel and Chief
Clerk of Committees.

Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical Science)
Gilles Paquet, Director of Research (Human Science)

The following witness was heard:

Hans Selye, M.D., Director,
Institute of Experimental Medicine and
Surgery, University of Montreal.

At 5.30 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.
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THURSDAY, April 18th, 1968.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee on Science
Policy met this day at 10.00 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Lamontagne (Chairman), Aird, Belisle,
Cameron, Desruisseaux, Grosart, Hays, Kinnear, Lang, Leonard, McCutcheon,
Thompson and Yuzyk. (13)

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senators Benidickson,
MacDonald (Queens), McGrand and O’Leary (Antigonish-Guysborough). (4)
In attendance:

R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel and Chief
Clerk of Committees.

Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical Science)
Gilles Paquet, Director of Research (Human Science)
The following witness was heard:
Dr. James Rhyne Killian, Jr., Chairman of the Corporation, Massachusetts
Institute of Technology.

At 1.10 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.

THURSDAY, April 18th, 1968.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Special Committee on Science
Policy met this day at 3.00 p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Lamontagne (Chairman), Aird, Belisle,
Cameron, Desruisseaux, Grosart, Hays, Kinnear, Lang, Leonard, Phillips
(Prince), Thompson and Yuzyk. (13)

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senators Benidickson,
Carter, Denis, MacDonald (Queens), and McGrand. (5)
In attendance:

R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel and Chief
Clerk of Committees.

Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical Science)
Gilles Paquet, Director of Research (Human Science)
The following witnesses were heard:
The Honourable C. M. Drury, P.C., Minister of Industry.
THE SCIENCE COUNCIL OF CANADA:
Dr. O. M. Solandt, Chairman.
Dr. R. Gaudry, Vice-Chairman, Rector of the University of Montreal.
Dr. Gordon N. Patterson, Member, Professor of Fluid Physics and
Director, Institute of Aerospace Studies, University of Toronto.
THE SCIENCE SECRETARIAT OF THE PRIVY COUNCIL:
Dr. J. R. Whitehead, Principal Science Adviser.
Henry Flynn, Science Adviser.

At 540 p.m. the Committee adiourned to the call of the Chairman.
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WEDNESDAY, April 24th, 1968

A convocation of members of the Senate met this day at 3.00 p.m. to
consider Science Policy.

Present: The Honourable Senators Grosart (Chairman), Aird, Desruis-
seaux, Kinnear, Lang, Leonard, Thompson and Yuzyk.—(8)

Also present: The Honourable Senators Carter, Fergusson and McGrand.
wla).
In attendance:
R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel and
Chief Clerk of Committees.
Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical Science)
Gilles Paquet, Director of Research (Human Science)
The following witness was heard:
Dr. Richard R. Nelson, Economist, The Rand Corporation, Santa
Monica, California, U.S.A.

At 5.20 p.m. the meeting adjourned to the call of the Chairman.

THURSDAY, April 25th, 1968

A convocation of members of the Senate met this day at 3.00 p.m. to
consider Science Policy.

Present: The Honourable Senators Lamontagne (Chairman), Grosart, Kin-
near, Leonard, Thompson and Yuzyk.—(6)

Also present: The Honourable Senators Carter, Connolly (Ottawa West)
and McGrand.—(3)

In attendance:

R. J. Batt, Assistant Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel and Chief
Clerk of Committees.

Philip Pocock, Director of Research (Physical Science)
The following witness was heard:

Dr. Alexander King, Director for Scientific Affairs, Organization f_or
Economic Co-operation and Development, (O.E.C.D.), Paris,

France.

At 5.30 p.m. the meeting adjourned to the call of the Chairman.
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THE SENATE
SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON SCIENCE POLICY
EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Tuesday, March 12, 1968

The Special Committee on Science Policy
met this day at 10.00 a.m.

Senator Maurice Lamontagne (Chairman)
in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, on this
occasion of our first public meeting I believe
it would be appropriate for me to put on
the record some background information
about the scope of our inquiry and the plan
we will try to follow in respect of our public
hearings.

Last November the Senate agreed to set up
a special committee of 18 senators to under-
take an investigation of the Canadian science
policy. The motion for the setting up of the
committee is as follows:

That a Special Committee of the Senate
be appointed to consider and report on
the scientific policy of the federal Gov-
ernment with the object of appraising its
priorities, its budget and its efficiency in
the light of the experience of other in-
dustrialized countries and of the require-
ments of the new scientific age and,
without restricting the generality of the
foregoing, to inquire into and report upon
the following:

(a) recent trends in research and de-
velopment expenditures in Canada as
compared with those ir other industrial-
ized countries;

(b) research and development activities
carried out by the federal Government in
the fields of physical, life and human
sciences;

(¢) federal assistance to research and
development activities carried out by in-
dividuals, universities, industry and other
groups in the three scientific fields men-
tioned above; and

(d) the broad principles, the long-term
financial requirements and the structural

organization of a dynamic and efficient
scientific policy for Canada.

The committee has engaged the services of
two research directors: Mr. Philip Pocock, a
former researcher at the National Research
Council, who will be mainly interested in
the physical and life sciences, and Professor
Gilles Paquet, an economist teaching at Carle-
ton University, who will concentrate his work
mainly in the field of the human and social
sciences.

As the committee proceeds with its inquiry
it intends to develop its own research pro-
gram on specific topics as the necessity arises.
These projects will be contracted out because
the committee does not feel that it should
build and develop a big staff.

The committee has already determined the
three main phases of its public hearings.
Beginning today we will receive submissions
from the Canada Council, the Science Council
of Canada, the Medical Research Council and
the Science Secretariat of the Privy Council.
We will also invite wise men from Canada
and abroad who have developed over the
years a keen interest in scientific policy. We
intend during this first phase of our inquiry
to concentrate on the broad questions which
must be answered as a prelude to determining
the main elements of a dynamic and effective
science policy. We intend also to consider the
implications of scientific research activities
for the long-term development of our nation
and the provision of a satisfying quality of
life for its citizens.

Beginning in May we will receive submis-
sions from all the more specialized research
agencies of the federal Government, such as
the National Research Council, the Defence
Research Board, the Economic Council, Ato-
mic Energy of Canada, and the Research
Branch of the Department of Agriculture.

The third and final phase of our hearings
will start, we hope, early next fall. We will

1



2 Special Commitiee

then invite representations from provincial
research agencies, universities, industry, la-
bour, agricultural and other professional as-
sociations, and also from individuals who
may wish to appear before the committee. We
hope that all those who are interested in this
broad and vital aspect of our national policy
will ask to be heard. Ultimately, of course,
we will submit our report to the Senate and
the Government.

The committee is well aware of the difficul-
ty and complexity of its task. We hope to get
the active collaboration of all those who have
a contribution to make to the improvement
of the Canadian research effort. If we receive
this co-operation I am convinced that we will
be able to produce a good report containing
sound and worthwhile proposals.

[Translation]

It is with great pleasure that I welcome
the distinguished representatives of the Can-
ada Council who accepted our invitation to
appear before us this morning, despite the
fact that the notice they received left them
very little time to get prepared. In any case,
if the Council wants to come back at a later
date, they will be most welcome to do so.

The Chairman of the Canada Council Mr.
Jean Martineau, should have presented the
report himself but unfortunately, this morn-
ing at the very last minute, he was detained
at the Supreme Court of Canada where he is
defending some clients. He apologizes for not
being here this morning.

Among the delegates we have with us this
morning, first of all, I would like to introduce
Mr. Napoleon Leblanc on my right, vice rec-
tor of Laval University, and Dr. Corry, whom,
I am sure several of you will recognize. He
is a former principal of Queens University;
Mr. Jean Boucher who is Director of the
Canada Council, and finally, Mr. Milligan
who is an Assistant Director of the same
Council.

[English]

We received only yesterday the introduc-
tory statement that the Council wants to
submit to us and since this submission is
rather short, I would propose, if you have no
objection, to ask a representative of the
Council to read this statement before we go
into any discussion. After all, it is only about
five and a half pages. Would the committee
agree to this procedure?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

[Translation]

The Chairman: Mr. Napoléon Leblanc will
first of all speak on behalf of the Canada
Council.

MR. NAPOLEON LEBLANC, VICE-REC-
TOR, LAVAL UNIVERSITY AND MEMBER
OF THE CANADA COUNCIL: Mr. Chair-
man, members of the Committee, on behalf of
the Canada Council I would like to express
the Council’s satisfaction for having this
opportunity to speak of the needs of research
in the social sciences and the humanities. May
I say that, like our chairman this morning,
we shall be speaking on behalf of our clients.

The Council views the activities of your
Committee with great pleasure, because we
believe that the development of Canada in
its present situation as a country and as a
partner in the international community re-
quires that we concern ourselves with pro-
viding adequate information to the public
if we want the public to share in the im-
portant decisions which will have to be
considered over the next few years, and if
we are to have available the scientific equip-
ment necessary to insure the harmonious
development of our society. I am referring
here not only to those technological improve-
ments that we shall have to provide, but
also to new developments which will enable
us to improve understanding between the
various groups and interests that affect our
daily life.

The Canada Council, on the basis of an ex-
perience which is still relatively short but
which has already proved highly rewarding,
is submitting to you an introductory state-
ment of the situation as it now stands and
particularly of the needs it expects to be
faced with.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for welcoming
us this morning. We are at your disposal to
answer any questions arising from the Coun-
cil’s introductory statement.

[English]
Mr. JEAN BOUCHER, DIRECTOR, CAN-

ADA COUNCIL: Mr. Chairman, do you want
the brief read in English?

The Chairman: Yes, in English.

Mr. Boucher: Then, Mr. Chairman, I will
just read the statement in English. The state-
ment is divided into three broad sections, one
of which deals with broad trends, another
with the programmes of the Canada Council,
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and finally a brief section on science policy.
The statement is as follows:

1. Broad Trends: From the nineteen twen-
ties on, it became each year more apparent
to governments and other policy-making
bodies that they needed to invest in the search
for more adequate knowledge if they were
to understand, control and use to best advan-
tage the forces of industrialization, urbaniz-
ation and communication. This evidence has
suddenly become even more glaring with the
launching of our world on an accelerated
pace of scientific and technological advance
which shows no prospect of reversal and clear-
ly brings in its wake an equally sweeping
pace of social, economic and political change.

2. Research as the means of deciphering
and extending our control over the environ-
ment, physical and human, thus becomes a
dominant concern and vital activity of the
post-industrial society. The task is such that
it needs to be attended to at the highest
level of political organization. National gov-
ernments have therefore been led to assume
the major responsibility for building up and
maintaining such activity. They are now at-
tempting to give this type of creative invest-
ment an appropriate weight in the pursuit of
other national objectives and in the program-
ming of public expenditures.

3. Whatever difficulty there is in reaching
comprehensive estimates of the financial re-
turns of a science policy, such a policy broadly
rests upon the necessity of enlarging knowl-
edge as the only way to ensure the ability
of nations to deal with problems of growing
complexity and to increase social and econo-
mic performance in a revolutionary age, “to
see better where we are and whither we are
tending”. It also rests upon the obligation
for any advanced society to make full use of
its creative talents and to foster the advance
of knowledge itself as a fundamental purpose
of human life.

4. It is mainly for the social sciences and
humanities to provide adequate interpreta-
tions of the new forces at play and a manage-
able range of options for man and society in
a world where all traditional patterns are
being challenged. Yet it is only recently that
this vital role has been recognized. Now a
race against the clock is on.

5. It is generally recognized in Canada
that, although we benefit from research done
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abroad, we must put research on the national
agenda for the following reasons:

—we could not otherwise use our most

creative human resources,

—our educational institutions could not at-

tract and retain first rate personnel,

—the country could not hold its rank
among technologically advanced nations and
have its say in undertakings which are now
shaping the world,

—some Canadian problems require Cana-
dian solutions,

—Canada is an exceptionally promising
place for the investigation of certain research
problems of world-wide significance.

6. Over the past twenty-five years and more
particularly over the past twelve, investment
in research has become a major objective of
governments and other decision-making bodies
in industrialized nations. The U.S. Govern-
ment which is now spending $16.5 billion
on research and development (R.&D.), was
spending less than $100 million in 1940. In
Canada, very substantial increases have been
allotted to research budgets in recent years.
Still, the country will have at least to double
its effort in a few years if it is to catch up
with OECD countries with no higher stand-
ard of living, who spend between 2 and 3
per cent of their GNP on R.&D.

7. One of the most recent trends of sig-
nificance has been the growing importance
of the social sciences in the pattern of gov-
ernment research support. In the U.S., the
social sciences research budget of the federal
government, although still comparatively
modest, has been increasing 30% faster an-
nually than those of the physical and life
sciences taken together. Over the past four
years in Canada, from 1964-65 to 1968-69,
while the NRC-MRC budgets have not quite
quadrupled (from $26 to $93 million) the
Canada Council budget for the social sciences
and humanities has grown twelve fold (from
$1.4 to $17.2 million). That budget is still,
however, less than one-fifth of the combined
budgets of the other two Councils; indeed it
is only two-thirds the increase granted these
two Councils for the year 1968-69. Yet social
scientists and humanists outnumber natural
scientists in the faculties of Canadian uni-
versities.

8. In any comparison of the budget growth
of the three Councils, another important fac-
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tor has to be borne in mind. It is the fact that
the Canada Council does not finance its pro-
grammes exclusively from annual parliamen-
tary appropriations but also from the income
yielded by its endowment funds, statutory and
privately bequeathed. Two consequences fol-
low from this special financial position. On
the one hand, Parliament does not have to
provide, from year to year, all the moneys
required for the research aid programme in
the social sciences and humanities, as it has
to do in the natural sciences. On the other
hand, whatever the relativity adopted between
the three Councils, the Canada Council will
always require a somewhat larger percentage
increase in its annual parliamentary grant
than the percentage increase envisaged for
its programme, since its other sources of rev-
enue are relatively constant.

The Canada Council’s Programmes:

9. By statute, the Canada Council bears
responsibility for providing national support
to free research in the social sciences and
humanities. It deals with research, not with
development. Its assistance goes to applied as
well as to fundamental research. However,
it does not support contractual research, but
only freely initiated projects.

10. The Canada Council and NRC have
instituted effective arrangements to look after
applications which might otherwise fall be-
tween two stools in frontier disciplines such
as psychology, archaeology, anthropology,
geography—and, I might add, mathematics.
There is a sharing of responsibility for certain
undertakings bringing together scholars from
various disciplines. With the growing interest
in such interdisciplinary research, this colla-
boration should become ever closer.

11. Doctoral fellowships: In the field of re-
search training, the Council concentrates its
efforts at the pre-doctoral level. Next year,
with close to $10 million for an expected 2,350
awards, the Council hopes to be only two or
three years away from reaching adequate
coverage of the doctoral population in the
social sciences and humanities. Apart from
Canadian students at home, the programme
extends to foreign students in Canada who
hold permanent residence visas, and to Cana-
dian students abroad. These three categories
should total 5,650 full-time students next aca-
demic year, compared with some 4,750 in the
physical and biological sciences.

12. At present, only some 37 per cent of the
teaching staff of Canadian universities in the
social sciences and humanities are in posses-
sion of their doctoral degrees, while the per-
centage is over 50 in the natural sciences.
Besides, the former usually take two more
years than the latter to complete their doctoral
programmes. To attract the more exceptional
students into the competition, to keep at their
thesis work those who have completed their
residence requirements, and to bring back to
their doctoral work those who have traded it
for teaching or research posts, the Council has
raised the value of its fellowships and ex-
tended their length of tenure to a point fully
competitive with the most attractive foreign
schemes.

13. As the average repatriation rate of
Canada Council fellowship holders is of the
order of 80 per cent, there would seem to be
no good reason for the Council to change its
traditional policy of extending support to the
large number of its fellows who choose to
study abroad, as the best way of maintaining
their ties with Canada. In any instance,
awards for study in Canada have grown from
127 last year to 329 this year and are expected
to number 624 in 1968-69. While a year ago
the U.S. contingent represented 38 per cent
of all award winners and the Canadian one
only 30 per cent, the situation is fully reversed
for next year, with figures standing at 28 per
cent for the U.S. contingent and 40 per cent
for the Canadian contingent.

14. Research projects. With over $3 million
for research grants and senior fellowships, the
Council is able this year to assist some 7 per
cent of the 10,600 university teachers in the
social sciences and humanities, a larger com-
munity than that for which the NRC and MRC
are jointly responsible. It hopes to spend some
$4.5 million next year in this area. There is
no evidence that the emerging techniques of
research in the social sciences and humanities
are less expensive than those used in most
branches of the natural sciences, and much
of the work of both sides can still be accom-
plished with modest means. The Council will
not be in a position to assess the limits of its
present contribution or to forecast its future
responsibilities until adequate information is
available on the level and coverage of support
coming from other sources, private or public,
contractual or free, Canadian or foreign. The
Council was about to launch such a survey a
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year ago, when it decided to join forces with
the Science Council on a broader review of
the funding of university research (the Mac-
donald Survey). It is doubtful, however, that
the resulting survey will provide all the
answers that the Council needs in order to
plan its programme. It should tell us more
about such things as the sharing of respon-
sibilities for computer expenses in research
budgets. It should also comment on the neces-
sity for Canadian universities or foundations
to adopt the American practice of attaching a
separate stipend to grants for free research in
order to make this activity more competitive
with research contracts offered by public and
private agencies only too willing to make re-
search economically attractive. This latter
problem, although by no means extending to all
the disciplines, is particularly acute in some
of the social sciences and may prove to be
critical in the development of free research in
Canada. The position of the Council is further
complicated by the fact that government de-
partments with social sciences research bud-
gets can feel free at times to provide stipends
with research grants or to shift applications
to their research contracts programmes. Some
pragmatic solution will have to be found if
only to remove the penalty which now inhibits
the initiative of the more widely sought career
researchers.

15. The adjudication system of the Council
for research grants applications rests not only
upon final review by an academic panel, but
also upon assessment by specialists of each
research area proposed. This is a particularly
elaborate system involving almost three times
as many assessors as applicants. In order to
bring to bear the best standards of interna-
tional scholarship, the Council is turning for
help to experts abroad almost as much as to
experts at home. A welcome by-product of
such a system is the quality of comments
produced and passed on to applicants with a
view to improving their performance. The
Council attaches great significance to its
ability to maintain the system in the face of
a rapid growth in applications.

16. Research communication: With similar
objectives in mind, the Council is at present
trying to improve research information and
communication

—by pressing for the establishment of a
continuing national inventory of research
activity in the social sciences and humanities;
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—by sponsoring a study of deficiency in
research supporting services, such as storage
and retrieval of social and economic data;

—by assisting learned societies in the
launching and maintenance of learned jour-
nals of international caliber; and

—by encouraging, apart from the large
annual meetings of learned societies, the hold-
ing of ad hoc meetings of specialists in key
research areas where effective national or
international co-ordination can be achieved.

17. The Council is giving encouragement
to the strengthening of learned societies so
that they could effectively service the schol-
arly community and co-ordinate its research
efforts. It is firmly convinced that scholars
themselves must participate actively in the
development of research policies. These
policies must be expressed through learned
societies equipped to review periodically the
substantive progress made in various research
areas and to deal with gaps and duplications.

18. Research equipment: The Council has
not had to provide for the installation of
computers in Canadian universities as the
NRC has done. The development of computer
services now calls for a review of the NRC
and Canada Council policies and this will
have to be completed in the near future. As
to other mechanical equipment required for
the conduct of research in the social sciences
and the humanities they can generally be
provided through the present system of re-
search grants offered by the Council.

19. However, the major issue related to the
adequate tooling of social and humanities
research in Canada is undeniably that of the
present state of our university library collec-
tions. This is the fundamental and most
dramatic shortcoming of Canadian research
institutions especially when compared with
American ones. Not only is Canada sadly
lagging behind the United States in this
respect but there are good reasons to believe
that this gap is broadening every day. The
situation is such that while Canada can now
offer research expenses to its scholars, it can
seldom ensure ready access to essential re-
search material. This problem was raised by
the Bladen Commission who suggested that
the Canada Council should at least be able
to make a token contribution of some $2 mil-
lion every year towards the building up of
research collections. Unfortunately the Coun-
cil is still unable to provide more than $1
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million a year for this purpose, while the
NRC and MRC are able to devote some $12
million to the tooling of university research
facilities in their own fields. However, the
Council has sponsored, through the AUCC,*
a survey of library resources which has now
been completed. The Downs Report published
later this month deals in part with the pros-
pect of compensating for the paucity of
research materials by a more systematic ex-
ploitation of the new technological devices
which are now in the process of development.
Now that this report is available, it is hoped
that a general attack on the problem will
become possible. If Canada does not want its
universities to slip quickly by international
standards to the level of glorified high schools,
it will have to double its university library
collections and resort to extensive use of all
proven technological facilities. This will call
for real co-operation and self-discipline among
universities, and for quite substantial expendi-
tures by governments. It is easily a $200
million operation.

20. Research overheads: While the Bladen
Commission made specific recommendations
as to the advisability for the federal govern-
ment to include an allowance for a 30%
overhead in its research grants to cover the
very substantial costs incurred by universities
in accommodating research activities, this
matter has not yet been resolved. In part, it
has been met indirectly by the new federal
system of operational support for post-sec-
ondary education, but it has not been the
object of any specific policy decision. The
Council has been keeping an open mind on
this matter and would be prepared to pursue
discussions with other interested parties. It
is inclined to believe, however, that such dis-
cussions might now profitably extend to other
more specific related problems such as com-
puters and stipends.

A Science Policy for Canada

21. The Canada Council believes that a
science policy has to take account of two
major objectives:

a) It must plan for a sustained allocation
of financial resources, for both development
and research, which would enable Canada
to move towards international standards of
public expenditures in this field and allow

* Association of Universities and Colleges of
Canada.

for a gradual bridging of the gap between
the human and the physical sciences.

b) It must provide a rationale for the ap-
portionment of government funds between
ministries and research councils on the one
hand, and on the other, between development
budgets, research contract budgets and re-
search grants budgets, without placing undue
emphasis in the research grants budgets on
the largely illusory distinction between pure
and applied science.

22. The Council believes that the only
enforceable system of priorities for the re-
search community is one that is self-im-
posed. An obvious prerequisite would be a
comprehensive appraisal by the community
itself of its own achievements and inadequa-
cies with a view to determining which re-
search programmes must continue to compete
with one another for limited funds and
which ones should be guaranteed priority
treatment for reasons of scientific as well as
social urgency.

23. The Council believes that the exact
pattern of administrative organization that
would be best suited to discharge such a
policy will evolve naturally from discussions
that would bear on the fundamental objectives
to be pursued.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[Translation]

Senator Bourget: Mr. Chairman, would it
be possible for us to have a translation of
this document, because it contains several
technical terms which are difficult to under-
stand?

The Chairman: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Bou-
cher.

[English]
Perhaps Dr. Corry would like to add some-
thing at this stage.

Dr. J. A. CORRY, MEMBER, CANADA
COUNCIL: Mr. Chairman and honourable
senators, at the outset I want to apologize
for coming in late. This was not due to any
discourtesy but simply to the difficulties of
planning how one gets here in time if one
drives. As to what I should like to say now
beyond what is in the brief, I think it is
very little. What may be worth noting, how-
ever, it seems to me, is the urgency of the
Canada Council’s worries as to whether we
have enough resources for doctoral fellow-
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ships and for supporting research projects in
the social sciences and the humanities. To put
it very simply, and not quite in the same
words as are used in this brief, it is very
clear that all the western societies, of which
we are one, are continuously pouring greater
and greater resources into scientific research.
The pace of scientific discovery on the pure
scientific side is very fast. The rate at which
these scientific discoveries are then applied
to human life and society is accelerating all
the time and we are faced with social and
economic change—and I would add conse-
quent disruption, because the two are inter-
twined—which is progressing at a rate never
before known, I think, by any human society.

Now, bearing that in mind, the urgency of
the Canada Council’s needs is this: that un-
less we can keep somewhat in pace in the
study of social and economic and other aspects
of our society, we are going to be overrun
by the rate of physical and scientific change
and our society’s disruption by it. Therefore
it seems to me that the need is getting more
and more pressing all the time for us, first,
to have support for young people who want
to go on to deeper and more profound studies
in the social sciences and humanities so that
they in turn as teachers or workers in other
areas can, in fact, tell more and more of us
what kind of things we are involved in and
where they are taking us, and, second, to
have more and more resources for research
in the social sciences and humanities.

To take only one instance, we see what pure
scientific research is doing to us in the way
of producing urban agglomerations which are
likely to become totally unmanageable unless
we study all the social implications of these
and how to cope with them and even, I would
say, how to try to prevent their getting any
bigger than they must be.

This is the basis, it seems to me, of the
case put forward by the Canada Council in
these fields, as I understand it. That is all
I would like to say just now.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Dr.
Corry. The meeting is now open for dis-
cussion and questions. To start with I will
invite Senator MacKenzie to open up the
discussion, since he is a former member of
the Canada Council.

Senator MacKenzie: Mr. Chairman, I am
very happy to have this opportunity of
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meeting with the representatives of the
Canada Council and discussing with you and
fellow members of the Senate what is a
very important problem and a very important
matter in terms of the life of Canadians and
in the life of human beings generally. I
know that our terms of reference are directed
to research, but before going into that I
would like to suggest to you that we are
involved here with what might be described
as the questions of the philosophy which lies
behind the work of this Council. I am speaking
of the humanities in particular and the fine
arts that do not lend themselves to the kind
of detailed technical research, and I am using
“technical” in its specific sense, that the
physical and life sciences do. For me the
humanities and the social sciences are con-
cerned with human beings, with human be-
haviour and the organization of /human
society. Dr. Corry made mention a moment
ago of the results of science and scientific
research in the physical and life sciences on
human life and on human society. And I am
not at all sure that granted the accuracy of
that statement that the best mehod of coping
with it is to follow almost exactly and identi-
cally in the footsteps of the scientists. I have in
mind that scientific research, which has, as
far as I can judge, been copied almost iden-
tically and exactly by the social scientists
and those in the humanities, is an inheritance
from the Germans. It was not at all a part
of the philosophy of Britain or the United
Kingdom and it was only to a lesser degree,
as far as I know, part of the philosophy of
France. It was true of Germany back in the
1880s and later. It was copied by the
Americans and the emphasis upon the Ph. D.
I think, can be directly attributed to its
origins in Germany and in the United States.
Now for the sciences, and here again I am
using physical and life sciences, I think a
good case can be made for the Ph. D. require-
ment in that area; but I wish that those in
the universities in particular who are con-
cerned with humanities and the social sciences
would take a hard look at the whole philos-
ophy of their fields of interest and work,
because as I understand it, it is our concern
to see what can be done about the lives of
human beings which are being so directly
and greatly influenced and affected by work
in the natural and physical sciences.

Coming to a few questions—and some of
them will be familiar to those who have been
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on the Canada Council or have worked with
it, because I have raised them before as a
member of that body—the Royal Commis-
sion which was responsible for recommending
that the Canada Council be established speci-
fically included in its recommendations that
law should be on a par with the other dis-
ciplines.

I would be grateful if the director, in due
course, would provide this committee with
information as to what assistance has been
given to the general field of law and juris-
prudence, and to scholarships, fellowships
and the like, in law.

I indicate or suggest that, not only because
it was in the original terms of reference, but
because law—and I am speaking as a preju-
diced person—is the oldest of the social
sciences, with possibly one exception, and it
is of major importance. The very fact that
the first chairman, Brooke Claxton, was a
very distinguished lawyer, and the present
chairman—who cannot be here this morning,
because he is practising his profession—is a
lawyer, is some evidence of the part or role
that law has played. I do not think the
Canada Council, as far as I know, has con-
cerned itself enough with this very important
area of the social sciences.

Another matter which was not, I think,
specifically mentioned in the Royal Commis-
sion report is what is generally called educa-
tion. And by “education,” I mean here the
preparation of the men and women to go into
our schools, at the primary and secondary
levels, to teach our children. Many of the
major problems of our society arise in that
area of activity, and I think it does not make
sense to disregard and ignore that whole
important sector and those responsible for
the development of our boys and girls who
become the young men and women and will
in due course be confronted by the problems
of our society.

So, I would like to ask the Director of the
Canada Council to provide this committee
with some information as to how much money
is provided in this general area of education,
and how many scholarships and fellowships
have been awarded by it.

This was specifically brought to my mind a
week ago Friday when I was giving a paper
before the Saskatchewan School Trustees’
Association in a very interesting and im-
portant conference week in Saskatoon, “an
invitation conference”, to which many dis-

tinguished people from all across Canada,
from coast to coast, were invited and were
present. After I finished my paper, one of
the audience got up and asked me why it
was that the Canada Council refused requests
to assist the men and women in this most
important field of education and activity.

Then, I have noticed that in the last few
years there has been a fundamental change
in the scholarship policy of the Council.
Formerly, grants were made at the M.A. level
as well as at the Ph.D. level—that is, to
those preparing for further graduate work.

I know all that needs to be known about
the limited funds available, but I have always
maintained that the most important thing for
those of us in this area of interest is to get
good young men and women started; and then,
if you can get them started, you can usually
be sure that the best of them will keep on.
The period between the completion of under-
graduate work and the beginning of graduate
work is, for many of them, the critical period.
It is a period when many of them can go
off to employment, and will not be interested
in the completion of graduate studies. I think
the abandonment of that program has re-
sulted, and will result, in the loss of many
able young men and women who, as I say,
without any particular encouragement, will
go into business, industry or somewhere else.

One or two specific questions—I will be
grateful for a small memo on Stanley House.
For the benefit of my colleagues in the Senate
who may not know what I am talking about,
Stanley House was the summer residence of
a former Governor General of Canada on the
south shore of the Gaspé Peninsula. It came
into the hands of an American owner, I be-
lieve, and she, in her will, left it to the Can-
ada Council, if the Canada Council were
willing to accept it. The Canada Council has
accepted it and makes some use of it during
the summer months for the meetings of small
groups of men and women in specialized
fields.

I think, Mr. Chairman, it might be in order,
later this summer, in July or August, if it
can be arranged, for you to find out whether
this committee, or such members of it as
could attend, could go for a week or ten
days of sessions together. I have not been
there myself. I have been invited on several
occasions as a member of the Council, but
could not manage it. It does suggest itself to
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me as being one of the places where there
would be no distractions—other than perhaps
fishing for salmon where the members of this
committee could meet together.

I notice too a reference to the Killam estate,

- but no details are given respecting that. I

know a little about that. I would be interested
to know what capital the Canada Council
expects to get from that estate, and the direc-
tions of the benefactor and the executors of
the estate in respect of its use.

To that I would like to add a question as
to how much money, in the form of endow-
ments or other revenue, the Council has re-

 ceived from private individuals and corpo-

rations. I know it does get some for specific

. purposes, or is asked to administer the grants

of certain monies for certain specific purposes.
I was very happy to listen to the Director

A. set out the needs of the libraries of the uni-
- versities of Canada. I am one of those who
_believe that libraries—perhaps next to the

students, and the faculty form the most im-
portant part of the university. I think if this
committee could be provided with copies of
the Downs Report when it is published we
might be in a better position then to give
our support to the recommendations in res-
pect of libraries.

I was interested in a comment in the report
that it takes longer, apparently, to produce
a Ph.D. in the humanities than it does in
the physical and life sciences. I think that
that is statistically a fact. I am not sure
that it is necessary, and I am not sure that
it is wise, and, again, I am not at all sure
that it is good for a lot of bright young men
and women in the humanities and in the
overlapping areas of the fine arts to be re-
quired, because of what amounts to a “trade
union” or “system” demand, to pursue studies
to the Ph.D. level.

I say this because Ph.D. work, while it can
be valuable and important for those in the
sciences—and I would include here certain
of the social sciences—could be frustrating
and could do damage to the more artistic ele-
ments in the Humanities.

I remember some eight or ten years ago
when the trustees of the Carnegie Endow-
ment for the Advancement of Teaching, com-
posed in the main of the heads of the most
important universities in the United States
had a two-day discussion on this matter.

There was general agreement among them, I
think, with what I have said, both about the
length of time that was taken, which they
felt was wrong, and about the question of
whether it was necessary and good for every-
body to follow that course.

I am delighted that the Government of
Canada has seen fit to provide the Canada
Council with more money than it received
from the original endowment fund. The
amount of money it received was dependent
upon interest rates, and it was plus or minus
$3 million a year. This was more or less
equally divided between the liberal arts, the
humanities, the social sciences, and the fine
arts, and so on. As I say, I am delighted that
the Government has seen fit—and I think it is
on an annual basis—to supplement that in-
come substantially.

I agree completely with the statements that
the Canada Council, and the work that the
Canada Council is responsible for, does not
receive either proportionately or actually
nearly enough money from federal Govern-
ment sources, but I would hope, I say, that
in the expenditure of these moneys, though
it is not our particular problem—the mem-
bers of this committee are concerned with
science and research—that the Council itself
would keep in mind its concern, because it
should be its concern, for the shape of Society
and the lives of the human beings in it,
which, in my opinion at least, is something
very different from research in the physical
and so-called life sciences.

I could go on because I have a very special
interest in the work of this Council, but I
know there are many others of my colleagues
here—both members of the committee, and
other members of the Senate, who have been
good enough to attend—who would like to
ask questions. I will leave any further com-
ments that I have for later on.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Sen-
ator MacKenzie. I wonder if Mr. Boucher
would want to make some comments on the
specific issues that have been raised about
law and encouragement to education?

Mr. Boucher: I think I should reassure Sen-
ator MacKenzie right away with regard to law.
From the outset, when the additional funds
became available, it was quite clearly indi-
cated to all our friends in law schools that
law was very much included in any of our
programs. Actually, the last press release re-
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garding our research grants lists, as the major
grant in the series of decisions, a grant of
some $47,000 to the law school of Queen’s Uni-
versity to compile an analytical catalogue of
Commonwealth treaties. So, law is very much
included. I understand that there will be 17
doctoral fellowships given in law this year.

Senator MacKenzie: You say ‘doctoral
fellowships.” The normal training of lawyers
in the English or common law system is an
undergraduate degree in arts followed by
three years in law which, by and large, is
equivalent in time, I would think, to the
obtaining of a Ph.D. in the sciences, and you
are expecting on top of that further studies.

Mr. Boucher: Well, I would say this, that
it does happen that law students pursue stu-
dies beyond the profession certification.

Senator MacKenzie: Do they do any Ph.D.
work, or is it in specialized fields?

Mr. Boucher: Doctoral studies in law—they
are engaged in a doctoral program of study.

Senator MacKenzie: Their degrees in the
main would be Doctor of Civil Law, Doctor
of Jurisprudence, and the like?

Mr. Boucher: Yes.

Senator MacKenzie: So you, I gather, expect
in the case of the law students that they
would have completed both their undergrad-
uate work in arts and their three years,
which is more or less the equivalent of the
Ph.D.2

Mr. Boucher: Yes, quite.

Senator MacKenzie: I may be wrong, but
is there a lawyer, if I may use that term, on
your academic committee?

Mr. Boucher: On our academic committee?
Senator MacKenzie: Yes.

Mr. Boucher: I have training in law, but
that does not really answer your question.

Senator MacKenzie: Well, you are, and
the chairman, is, I know, but I was looking
through the names here, and...

Mr. Boucher: There may be some of our
political scientists who have had full training
in law.

Senator MacKenzie: I am a little sensitive
about this issue, as Dr. Corry well knows.
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In other words, I am not sure that it is good
enough to have a social scientist who hap-
pens to have had some training in law to
protect, as it were, the special interests of
the specialized group.

Dr. Corry: It depends upon the circles in
which T am moving, but I still try to pass
myself off as a lawyer when the occasion
offers. Whether Senator MacKenzie would
accept this I cannot, of course, say, but I
am on the academic committee.

Senator Thompson: I do not know whether
I am following this, but I am looking at my
previous boss and my previous principal, and
I know you did not take your Ph.D., Dr.
Corry. I am trying to understand why Senator
MacKenzie raised this question on the disci-
pline of getting a Ph.D. It is, as he said, a
trade union ticket in the humanities. Why are
you focussing your attention, in awarding
your grants, on Ph.D. recipients?

Mr. Boucher: I will try to answer this, and
I hope my answer will not appear overly
cute or sophisticated. I think we have to
start with the fact that while the Council
has more funds, it still has limited funds.
When it started moving into more ambitious
programs it had to do one thing. It could no
longer afford to run several programs, where
it could make a number of decisions dealing
with a few applications but never covering
any single field.

This was the situation three or four years
ago, that the Council had not enough money
to really cover any area. It was moving
towards a situation where it could have
enough money to cover certain fields, that
is to stand ready to take in any good appli-
cations coming from that field.

With regard to student aid, we had to
decide whether we were in the field of
student aid or whether we were in the field
of research aid. It appeared to us to make
some sense that if we were to look after
those students who are in the ultimate stage
of their training as career research people
or as career scholars, then we could still
say that we were really dealing with research-
ers in training. We therefore took the ultimate
degree and started counting support from the
last year when they get their degree, and we
are now helping students who are two years
away from completing their residence in the
acquisition of the top degree.
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It also happens that this channel of train-
ing is still very largely regarded by our
universities as the normal channel leading
to the practise of the profession of teacher
or scholar. We are not passing judgment on
whether it is the best formula. We all know
that people have very serious reservations
about the actual significance of the doctoral
program. We know that those programs are
now being subjected to a number of modifica-
tions and improvements. We are not interested
in knowing whether people have got their
M.A.s. We will take people who are registered
in a doctoral program whether or not they
have acquired their M.A.

By the way, our M.A. scholarships were
never very substantial in number. The year
before I came to the Canada Council there
had been none, and the year before that I
think there had been 39. Today the M.A.
population would be at least three times the
Ph.D. population. The Ph.D. population is
moving beyond 5,000. I think we can make
a significant contribution to the training of
that universe. I think that to deal with the
M.A. population would be, certainly at the
moment, beyond our means except if we
maintained certain programs which would
reach only a few candidates in that wvast
universe.

There is also the problem arising from
the gradual moving of provincial governments
into university student support. Not all
provinces but some of the major ones now
have programs of support for undergraduate
students and M.A. students on the basis of
competition, and it is not at all clear that
it would be useful to run competing com-
petitions for the same universe. However, we
have the feeling that it makes more sense
to look after a group of students, really in
some way relieving the provinces of the
necessity to look after them.

Senator MacKenzie: This does not apply to
some of the provinces who need it most,
however.

Mr. Boucher: Then the problem, of course,
is whether we could have scholarship pro-
grams for certain provinces and not for
others.

Senator MacKenzie: We could have general
one which might not be used by some prov-
inces but would be very useful to others.

The Chairman: I think there is another
element which has not been mentioned. In

the last few years the federal student loans
came into operation.

Senator MacKenzie: They help very greatly.

The Chairman: I am sure that it helps to
cope with the situation before the M.A. level.

Senator MacKenzie: It ends before the M.A.
level as a rule so that the M.A. lad is left
without either the loan or the grant. How-
ever, I have raised the point, sir, and I really
need not pursue it further. What about edu-
cation, if I might press you on that, Mr.
Boucher?

Mr. Boucher: On education, of course, we
have held on to our reservations until quite
recently, not because it was constitutionally
a provincial responsibility but simply because
it represented again a very substantial addi-
tional population to the pool of applicants.

Senator MacKenzie: But they are import-
ant, you would agree?

Mr. Boucher: Yes. Also, because we were
not quite certain that it was exclusively the
responsibility of the Canada Council with no
responsibility being shouldered by N.R.C., if
it had to be defined exclusively as a social
field and we would have had to support, for
example, students who would want to study
the pedagogy of botany or something like
that. We could not see very much logic in
our being led to this ..

Senator MacKenzie: But you could make
your own distinctions?

Mr. Boucher: Yes. Also, we were not
knowledgeable enough in the staff and among
our advisors to sort out what would be
strictly professional training and what would
be really scientific or scholarly work. A good
many of the projects presented to us ap-
peared to deal with the sort of questions that
a department of education in a government
would be asking itself more than with ques-
tions scholars could be asking.

Senator MacKenzie: Oh, I grant you that
you can make many excuses for not doing
things if you do not want to do them. I am
not blaming you, because this is true. But I
was a member of the Council, too, sir. I
think it is a mistaken policy, so I think we
can rest it at that.

Mr. Boucher: Perhaps I should add that we
are now relaxing the program gradually and
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we will consider applications from depart-
ments of education in Canadian universities.

Senator MacKenzie: Mr. Chairman, would
it be in order to suggest that perhaps the
Canadian Teachers’ Federation or the Cana-
dian Association of Education might present
us with a brief later on?

The Chairman: At a later stage, of course,
we could invite them.

Senator MacKenzie: I suggest this because
I know it is a matter that is very keenly
felt in that area.

The Chairman: They can certainly ask to
be heard.

Senator MacKenzie: I think it would be
very useful to give them a chance to explain
their feelings, and also what they believe
the facts to be.

Senator Thompson: Following on that, re-
ferring to libraries and looking at the view
taken by the Downs Report, have you done
any background work on these assessments
of metro areas in considering library facil-
ities? Have you focussed attention on li-
braries?

Mr. Boucher: The Downs Report?
Senator Thompson: Yes.

Mr. Boucher: The Downs Report deals pri-
marily and esentially with university collec-
tions. It includes some reference to other
facilities available in major metropolitan
areas, but in a rather summary way. It deals
mostly with the shortcomings of university
libraries, but it takes into consideration the
overall resources of large centres such as
Toronto and Montreal.

Senator Thompson: I was thinking of an
assessment. First of all, do we know the
situation across Canada concerning university
libraries, libraries in metro areas and schools?
Are we aware of the need? If so, what re-
sources can be developed to remedy this?
We have had some study, for example, in
Ontario on libraries in schools. We have had
the Downs Report, and a previous criticism
of the situation in metro Toronto. Does the
Council feel any particular responsibility or
give any encouragement to developing re-
sources in this area?

Mr. Boucher: The answer to that would be
no, the Canada Council does not assume that
it carries any responsibility for developing
public libraries. The Council has to redefine
its own understanding of its mandate all the
time. It usually never says a project is out-
side its mandate, because its mandate is so
broad that if provided with additional re-
sources, the Council could do any number of
things which it is not doing presently. But
the answer generally is that our present
policies, our present resources, do not place
us in a position to be of any assistance in
the field of public libraries or in the field of
undergraduate aid.

Senator MacKenzie: The Canadian Libraries
Association and those affiliated with that
body are seeking funds at the moment to
undertake, for the whole of Canada, the kind
of study of library resources which was done
in the Downs Report on University Resources.

To date, they have not got that money.
Until they do, or somebody does, this job
will not be done. It is a very important ques-
tion which my colleague has raised.

Senator Grosart: We seem to be proceed-
ing on the assumption that the Canada Coun-
cil has what might broadly be described as a
grants policy. Around the country one hears
very often a statement that if the Council
has such a policy it is very well hidden.

Mr. Boucher said a moment ago, for ex-
ample, in speaking of the educational field,
that the Council was relaxing its policy. I
wonder to what extent this is communicated
to those people who are to benefit from this
beneficent relaxation. I have heard it said,
for example, that the Council, in its grants
policy, has pursued what appears on the
surface to be a very unscientific method of
determining who shall be the beneficiaries—
that is, they wait for people to apply. I do
not know whether this is true.

I would assume that a council with a scien-
tific background, a scientific outlook and,
presumably, scientific procedures, would sur-
vey the whole field and decide which projects
and which persons can be assisted most suit-
ably by Canadian Council grants.

Could we have an explanation, therefore,
of the relationship of the application to the
decisions of the Council? What is done—
when the Council decides, in its wisdom, to
increase the area of its grants—to com-




Science Policy

municate with those who i’night come under
the new policy?

MR. F. A. MILLIGAN, ASSISTANT DI-
RECTOR, CANADA COUNCIL: There is a
problem of communication which we have
encountered over the past year, particularly
during my own limited experience with the
Council. It might be worth recalling, as
Senator MacKenzie has brought out, that for
the first eight years of its life the Council
lived on a very modest income from endow-
ments. This income limited it to a program
of about $1} million, for the social sciences.
This meant that the Council could not adver-
tise its program widely. It also meant that
the Council could only be highly selective in
what it supported. An image of the Council
in Canada developed in the universities dur-
ing this period.

We have had an uphill battle over the
past year in getting across to the scholars of
the country the fact that the Council has
funds now and is prepared to receive
applications relating to any research project
in the humanities or social sciences; that the
chances of success are considerably greater
now than they used to be; and that we are
trying to offer a comprehensive program.

It is only in the past eight months that we
have been developing a staff to the point
where we have been able to send people to
the universities to explain our policy. We
found that there were many misconceptions
and misunderstandings of our aims. We have
been clearing up such misconceptions.

Furthermore, we have found that simply
sending printed explanations to the universi-
ties, as has been done, does not solve the
problem of communication. Such written
statements are not read. It seems to me that
the only way to cure this is by the process
of visiting universities, talking to scholars
individually and in groups, and getting the
message across to them.

One other development is helping us also.
An increasingly large number of scholars are
being involved in our processes.

Senator MacKenzie has raised a point about
law and research grants. I might explain that
each research grant is put before a group
of assessors, selected in relation to that
particular application. This means that any-
thing which comes from a law school will be
evaluated by legal scholars, not by political
scientists, or anthropologists or such people.
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By this method, as has been mentioned in
our brief, we are actually involving three
times as many scholars in the process, as
assessors, as are involved as applicants. Many
people in Canadian universities—and in
universities abroad, for that matter—are be-
ginning to learn about the sorts of programs
we are trying to run. I hope that the problem
of communication will be solved, in time; but
we are still very much concerned about it and
we are trying to introduce new devices for
breaking down the gap between ourselves and
those scholars with whom we are concerned.

Senator Grosari: My question was not di-
rected primarily to the communications prob-
lem but rather to the policy problem. I have
tried on various occasions to determine from
the annual reports and the list of grants what
the policy was. At times I have decided that
I thought I knew the policy of the Council;
but then, when a new list of grants would
come up, I would say to myself that my
previous opinion was wrong.

Is there a statement of policy? Or, do you
rely completely on applications—which, I sug-
gest, is an unscientific way to spend this
amount of money.

Mr. Milligan: The straight answer is that
we rely essentially on applications. We rely
on the initiative of scholars. Our mission in
life, our principal mission, is to provide a
source of support for the kind of research
which career scholars wish to do and for
which there has been very little support, ex-
cept from American sources, for a long period
of time. There has been money available
from royal commissions, from Government
departments and from industry, for the kind
of research which serves the policy ends of
decision-making bodies of that sort. There
is no support for the kind of work which
the scholars decide they wish to do, par-
ticularly on the frontiers of their own dis-
ciplines.

This was our starting point in the Council.
We are hoping to involve the community of
research scholars, through its learned as-
sociations, or through such bodies as the
Social Sciences and Humanities Research
Councils, in the assessment of what is being
done by career scholars, whether with our
support or with support from other sources,
to tell us where the strengths and the weak-
nesses are, to suggest what should be done to
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correct the weaknesses, to suggest the areas
in which scholars should put forth greater
research effort.

We feel that such guidance must come to
us essentially from the scholars themselves.
There may be a role in this process for those
more directly concerned with the policy needs
of Government at various levels, or of in-
dustry; there may be a need for a partnership
between such people and the scholars in
working out where the needs for greater
effort may lie. The Canada Council is essen-
tially a bureaucratic organization; I am not
sure that we are qualified to suggest to the
research community what it should be doing,
and I am equally sure that, if we tried to do
so, our suggestions would be resented.

Dr. Corry: Mr. Chairman, I would like
to make a comment on what Senator Grosart
has said about trying to draw out those who
ought to be doing research which is needed.
I have had considerable experience on this
point over a period of years, on several coun-
cils which had money to spend for research
purposes. On three occasions, at least, the
council in question decided that a particular
area ought to be explored very carefully, our
opinion being that it was a very important
area for the purposes of the country and the
community. We looked around to try to get
persons who would be willing to take up such
a research project which, in our opinion,
ought to be part of the general scheme.

The experience with this, whether it was
our fault or not, was on the whole rather
bad, because some of these fellows were fin-
ally traduced with some money to do some-
thing which we later learned they had not
really wanted to do all that much, but be-
cause they were being given resources they
said, “Yes.” But either they laid down on the
job or they delayed or they did not get at it
because something else had caught their
attention. My impression is, therefore, that it
is very difficult for any agency like this to
organize specific research activities and draw
people in by the ‘“carrot” of money support.

My own impression, as the result of those
experiences, is that it is better to encourage
people to see that there are possibilities and
then let their own interests and inclinations
attract them or draw them in rather than to
try to create research projects for which you
then go out and try to find people to carry
them through.
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This may not be the universal experience,
but it was certainly the one that I met on
each of these occasions when I got into this.

Senator Thompson: Mr. Chairman, may I
point out that sometimes we have nervous-
ness over bureaucracy research, particularly
music and the arts. I suppose you will always
hear of some cases where a person was not
given consideration, but, on the other hand,
his radical proposals may have been the means
of changing our society. I suppose those
people on the panel, who are chosen on the
Canada Council, have really become part of
the establishment of either the scholastic
community, the music community or the ar-
tistic community, otherwise they would not
have been chosen to be there.

What is the changeover on these panels and
committees in order to permit the fresh voice
of innovation and of radical people to be
given some recognition?

Mr. Milligan: It varies between the differ-
ent levels of panel or adjudication. At the top
we have what is known as the Academic
Advisory Panel, a body of 15 members. One-
third of this panel changes every year. I
suppose that in a sense this might be regard-
ed as being an establishment group. I think
it is a mixed group. It is not named by es-
tablished bodies. The panel is, to some ex-
tent, self-perpetuating, with the actual ap-
pointment to be made by the Council. There
is a good deal of consultation in the scholarly
community about who should be on the panel.
This is really a final review of the body.

Below this, in the process of adjudication
in both doctoral and faculty fellowships, we
work by a system of committees which are
reconstituted every year. In each committee
we try to get a reasonable variety of ap-
proaches and biases within this discipline
because there are scholarly schools which we
have to recognize are often competitive and
very often hold one another almost in con-
tempt. We have to allow for this.

Then, for the research grant program there
are in fact no standing committees at all.
Each application, as I said, is sent out to a
selected group of assessors which is picked
on the basis of the application itself. I doubt
if any two applications are ever looked at by
the same group of people. The number chosen
will depend upon the complexity and size of
the project. It may be three; it may be five.
We have gone as high as eight in some cases.
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In selecting people, which we do through
consultation, we try to recognize variety
throughout the scholarly community. We try
to be sure that we get reasonable representa-
tion of different points of view so that they

~ can all be brought to bear on any one ap-

plication, but, in relation to the subject
matter, they are all points of view of spe-
cialists.

Senator Thompson: Do you feel that the
Canada Council has, in giving grants, incurred
great public outery in its choice of projects?
The story of the sculptor Rodin comes to
my mind. I think of the frustration he en-
dured under the grant system, trying to get
recognition throughout his life. Although I
in no way, for example, can judge a sculptor
or artist, I cannot help feeling sympathetic
for the cause of someone completely avant
garde trying to get some recognition in the
community—and I question that he will get
recognition.

Do you not feel that if you had more of
an outery on the choice of your recipients
that it would perhaps be an indication that
you are ahead of your times? Personally, I
do not know.

Mr. Boucher: Mr. Chairman, if I may add
a word, I do not think we have any qualms
in saying that we are public servants or
bureaucrats. That is what we are. But when
we say that. we do not necessarily use the
word in a pejorative sense. We merely mean
to say that there are limits to what our role
is. We should not try to do what we are not
appointed to do. On the other hand, we have
no hesitation, I think, to say that our system
has certainly shown as much imagination as
our parish has been able to show. We have
no hesitation to say that it is not the more
imaginative, creative, or enterprising applica-
tions that have been turned down by the
Council. In fact, we have supported a number
of applications which have been found to be
rather disturbing by some members of our
panel and of our Council. So it is not in
being progressive that we may have been
really lacking.

I think that we have to say, going back
again to the history of Canadian scholarship
in the social sciences and humanities, that it
is a long-starved community. It is a com-
munity that really never had the resources
to do what it wanted to do, and in which
there is a tradition of people who are now
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at our age but who very early in life gave
up on scholarly endeavours. Very often now
our problem is to try to reach those who
still have faith in the advance of knowledge
—the young ones and the not so young ones
who have pursued scholarly work—and really
to support the ones who have imaginative
projects.

We have always tried to do that. We have
always subjected all the applications to the
most demanding standards that you could
think of, including international assessments,
and I think generally we have reason to be
rather proud, not of all the projects we have
supported but certainly of a very good many
of them each year.

Every time a press release comes out there
is mention of one or two things that are really
unusual in what we support—not only on the
artistic side but even on the scholarly side.

Senator Grosart: You have been “swingers”
on occasion.

Mr. Boucher: We can be.

Dr. Corry: If I could offer some testimony
on this particular point, Mr. Chairman,
you may have noted that, when Mr. Boucher
was saying that he found members of the
Council raising eyebrows about some of the
projects that had come forward from assessors
and panels, he was looking at me. I can
safely say that there has been no lack of
these proposals. Whether they are properly
called radical proposals or not, I call them
adventurous, and many of them have brought
me up with a start. I have protested from time
to time, but, with all those who are sym-
pathetic to adventurous or radical projects,
I almost always lose the argument. So I do not
think it is fair for us to say that we are impos-
ing a kind of conservative, small “c”, imprim-
atur on these things. Part of the difficulty is, of
course, that any fellow who is turned down is
going to think that this place is a complete
horror and that something ought to be done
about it. I am not sure he is always right.

Senator MacKenzie: Growing out of Sena-
tor Grosart’s point, and in view of the un-
questioned influence and importance of the
press and radio and television, my first ques-
tion is weather this area has been surveyed
with a view to discovering whether there are
individuals or fields of interest in this most
important area of our lives that could proper-
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ly be assisted with funds from the Canada
Council.

My second question has to do with age,
and I would like to deal with that separately.
I would be grateful if one of the members of
the Council here present could deal with my
first question. I have in mind the Nieman
Fellowship and the Atkinson Fellowship to be
held at the University of Toronto which is
designed for journalists and others. These I
think have been imaginative and useful. Also,
and I hate to say this because it amounts to
academic heresy, these people have far more
influence on our society than all the Ph.D.s
in the humanities and the social sciences put
together. I will, perhaps, withdraw the social
sciences and just leave the humanities. I am
really serious in my view that this should be
given consideration in terms of study of the
field and of assistance to those working in it.
I don’t know of anything that gets more dis-
cussion in the Senate and in the committees
of the Senate than some of the media I am
talking about. I think perhaps you would be
performing a public service if you could
recommend something. My other question is a
different one.

The Chairman: First of all, does any mem-
ber of the Council have a comment to make
on this point?

Dr. Corry: I would say that I agree with
Senator MacKenzie in deploring the fact that
we do not make greater impact on the humani-
ties and social sciences, mainly on the human-
ities but I think there is a difficulty in ex-
pecting quick recommendations and results
from studies that go on in the humane areas.
We have had leaders in this field who in
their day and generation have been crucified
for their efforts, and their influence was a
long-term influence. I am not sure that it is
not something of the same kind that is at
work where you have people working in the
humanities who do not make as fast an im-
pact on the world as people who deal with
other things that you can quantify and meas-
ure, and as people who have an immediate
impact on the application of these things to
our social system.

The Chairman: Could we pass now to
Senator Belisle.

Senator Belisle: Under this heading “The
Canada Council’s Programmes” in paragraph

14 you say that there are 10,600 university
teachers and that only 7 per cent of these
will be assisted this year. Is this assistance
offered on the basis of a certain amount for
each province or is it offered on the basis
of their merits?

Mr. Boucher: On the basis of applications
and on the basis of adjudication. We have
received applications from approximately
1,000 university teachers during the course
of the year and we have been able to award
something like 750 research grants or senior
fellowships to that group. So it is on that
basis—simply on the basis of applications—
that they are selected. We have no provincial

quotas; we could not administer provincial

quotas.

Senator Belisle:
1966, for example?

Mr. Boucher: Oh, yes. I do not know
whether members realize the amount of work
involved in simply handling the demand,
let alone in anticipating which direction it
should take. There have been days during
the course of the year when as many as five
or six applications would come in, and an
application is an elaborate presentation of a
project which calls for a lot of work from
an officer who has to follow the application
for several weeks. Now, we have been able
to cope with the growth of the demand—
this is another important fact,—and the addi-
tional funds provided by the Government
have really allowed us in very recent years
to build up the demand and really to cope
with it more or less as we went along. We
have not been and we cannot say that we
have been really sadly short of money in
view of the demand placed upon us. The
problem is that our parish is only discovering
our existence and the size of the demand in
one years’ time, two years’ or three years’,
is a matter for speculation. We have reason
to believe it will be far greater than it is
now. The pool of applicants is of the order
of 10,000, and the number of applicants
among career scholars has been of the order
of 900 or 1,000 this year.

Is this an increase over

Senator Yuzyk: I want to follow up this
question and in doing so I realize the fact that
the processing of such a large number of
applications means you must have an in-
creasing staff every year. Could you give us
some idea of how large your staff is—the
technical staff at least?
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Mr. Milligan: When I joined the Council
a little over a year ago there was one officer
concerning himself entirely with the social
sciences and humanities and he had been
with the Council for less than six months.
I now have working with me five other offi-
cers and one who is on a part-time basis
during our peak period, making a sixth. We
expect that next year there will be a 25
per cent to 30 per cent increase in the volume
of the applications and we will need one
more full-time officer. We have provided for
this for next fall. I think Dr. Boucher is a
little low in his statistics when he says that
there are.days when five or six applications
come in. Sometimes we receive 20 applications
in a day, and generally we receive at least
five or six a day.

When we say that 7 per cent of the eligible
scholars received support in the past year,
this does not mean that 93 per cent have
been disappointed. In fact, fewer than 10 per
cent applied. I would expect that if we had
an adequate interest in research in Canadian
universities the volume of applications in any
given year would be approximately 20 per
cent of the total number of career scholars.
This has been the experience in the United
States and probably in the natural sciences
in Canada as well.

Senator Yuzyk: Do you find you are behind
in the processing?

Mr. Milligan: At this time of the year we
are, for this is the time of the year when
we get applications for grants for summer
projects. By the end of April, I would expect
we would pretty well have caught up al-
though a large number of grants then pend-
ing are not made until the end of May, when
the Council meets.

Senator Yuzyk: How closely do you adhere
to the deadline? If an application comes to
you one day after the deadline, do you reject
it or do you take it into consideration?

Mr. Milligan: No, we do not. The deadline
applies of course only on fellowship programs.
These are the only programs that have dead-
lines. We try to have them submitted by the
deadline, but we are not rigid on this. As
far as research grants are concerned, we are
still hoping we can maintain this as an open-
ended program which has no deadlines; we
will accept applications any day of the year.
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Senator McCuicheon: Mr. Chairman, I was
wondering what assurance, if any, the Coun-
cil is in the habit of giving to the recipient
of a grant who will obviously require the
grant for a further year or two in order to
carry out the exercise which the Council has
initially approved.

Mr. Boucher: If I could answer Senator
McCutcheon on this: we advertise that we are
prepared to entertain applications for re-
search projects extending to three years, up
to three years, the implication being not that
we rule out projects that would extend beyond
that period, but that we are not really making
any formal commitment beyond that.

Our arrangement with the Auditor General
is such that we cannot approve, in any given
year, support for three years without encum-
bering the funds. So we have found a device
which would allow us to grant support for
the first year and to indicate willingness to
maintain support in subsequent years, upon
satisfactory progress, without really having to
encumber in one single year all the three-year
resources required. That is what we do. We
inform the applicants that money has been
granted for the first year of operation, that
we have looked at the budget for subsequent
years, and that the Council is willing to con-
sider favourably applications for support, at
the levels indicated, for subsequent years,
upon satisfactory report.

Senator McCuicheon: Thank you very

much.

Senator Grosari: Mr. Chairman, one some-
times hears criticism—and I am not neces-
sarily associating myself with it—that the
Canada Council grants are, on occasion, given
to persons who could well finance the proj-
ects, or should be able to finance the proj-
ects, out of their own resources. This ap-
plies particularly to people who are very
well established, who have very substantial
incomes. I have heard it said that the Coun-
cil sometimes forget these funds come from
the public and from people who are denying
themselves some of the necessities, for ex-
ample, to put their own children through
university.

I am not suggesting that this should be
a means test, but I am wondering if Mr.
Boucher could tell us what the policy is
in this regard, because it has been a matter
of public criticism at times.
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Mr. Boucher: I suppose one would have to
make a distinction between fellowships and
grants. Of course, fellowships would go to
certain senior students whose parents are
wealthy and, perhaps, could afford to com-
plete their studies without the assistance of
the Council. We have no way of investigating
the private means of applicants, and I think
the alternative would have to be a means
test. I do not see any other solution than
that we would have to apply a means test
in this regard.

When it comes to research grants they
never include any stipend, but only cover
expenses. They have to be thought of as a
recovery of expenses that have to be in-
curred. I doubt very much that one could
make a very strong case for Canadian scho-
lars being personally capable of financing
their own research. There may be, there
should be, there must be a percentage of
Canadian scholars who have personal wealth;
but I think we can be reasonably assured that
they are a small minority. Therefore, the set-
ting up of an elaborate system to track
down those who could do it on their own
private savings probably would be more
expensive than the few grants that we might
make to wealthy people.

Senator Yuzyk: Is there not the prestige
angle attached to it too—some would like to
get a grant or scholarship because it comes
from the Canada Council?

Mr. Boucher: The Council is very much
aware of that. It is more evident on the arts
side than on the academic side. Now, the
Council does not give blessings. It can only
give money, and we have to be quite candid
about that. We do not support things just
because they are good, but only when we can
invest money in them. They have to go
through the system of adjudication, and if
they fail they are not going to get any form
of moral suport. The Council is not in a
position to give moral support, but only
financial support.

Senator MacKenzie: My other question has
10 do with the influence of age on your
decisions. I have heard it said rather loosely,
or without too much consideration, that no
great work in the sciences is done after a
person reaches the age of thirty. I would be
prepared to extend that a little. I would be
inclined to say that in the case of the Humani-
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ties—possibly the Social Sciences and Fine
Arts—perhaps experience brings some wis-
dom and judgment, in a practical form.

What would be your attitude towards an
application from Dr. Corry, after he leaves
Queen’s next July?

Dr. Corry: 1 am all ears!

Senator MacKenzie: This is a question,
because within the past year, I have had
inquiries, letters, from individuals who did
not get grants and who asked me whether
it was because of their age. One of them
was an artist, possibly pushing seventy, and
another, in another area, a social scientist,
I would think round sixty-five or so.

I can understand the value of investment
in young people, because you expect to get
a long-term reward, but what about a person
who has laboured in the vineyard for many
years? Should not he be considered for recog-
nition and reward? I am thinking, again, of
individuals like Dr. Corry.

Mr. Boucher: I should have hoped Dr.
Corry would answer this! I should say that
we have always been careful on the adminis-
trative side of the Council to screen out from
assessment reports any rating which seems
to be related to factors like this. We cannot
stop our consultants from reaching judg-
ments which may rest on this type of argu-
ment, but it usually comes out in the as-
sessment, and then we look at it twice to
find out whether the argument is well
founded.

I think that age, as such, is not a relevant
factor. But it might well be, on the other
hand, that having moved into a discipline
several decades ago and having been trained
in that discipline at a time when it had
reached a certain development, it might be
that a scholar would not be equipped
to handle the new techniques, if that is what
he intends to do; he may not be fully trained
to do research that way. This appears to be a
reasonable comment on his application. But
to state simply, on the mere ground that he
has reached a certain age, that he is incapable
of undertaking a certain project, is not a fair
comment.

Senator MacKenzie: I have again in mind
the point raised by Senator Grosart earlier,
about the areas for investigation. For in-
stance, two or three studies have been con-




Science Policy

ducted by the Senate, one recently completed
with important results by Senator Roebuck
on divorce. If age had entered into his work
there might have been a very different result.
Senator Croll’s committee which studied
aging, and a number of other committees
studying other areas of importance, have
been headed up by people who are, shall we
say, well along in years.

Mr. Milligan: There are young men of all
ages, and old men of all ages.

Senator MacKenzie: Quite, and I am satis-
fied as long as you realize that.

[Translation]
The Chairman: Senator Desruisseaux.

Senator Desruisseaux: In considering the
conclusions made in your presentation with
respect to a scientific policy for Canada, I
have been wondering, as a layman, whether
the whole policy that we find here is actually
the one being followed by the Council. That
is my first question.

Mr. Boucher: I must say that the prin-
ciples laid down in these paragraphs are those
on which the Canada Council’s policies are
based at the present time.

There are of course certain fields which
do not come under our jurisdiction, but are

. relevant to government policy. We do not

develop government policy with respect to
the allocation of funds to different items
of expenditure. However, as is suggested in
paragraph 22, we believe very strongly in
the principle that all the learned societies
should be closely involved in the development
of a science policy. We make every effort to
follow this principle.

Senator Desruisseaux: Then, if I understand
correctly, the Government has entrusted to
the Canada Council the policy to be
implemented?

Mr. Boucher: The Senator is raising a very
complicated problem, that of knowing what
happens to the autonomy of the Canada
Council in its present financial situation. It
is obvious that when the Council was set up,
it had both the responsibility and the man-
date to develop its own policies within its
particular fields. The government and Parlia-
ment, at that time, created an independent
body to which they entrusted the responsibil-
ity of developing a policy on the basis of the

resources placed at its disposal. Now that the
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Council has become increasingly dependent
upon annual parliamentary grants that ac-
count for a higher and higher proportion of
its total budget, it is obvious that the Council
will have to maintain a dialogue with the
government and Parliament in order to con-
vince them that such additional funds will
serve purposes that the government and
Parliament will consider justified. I do feel
however that even in such a context, where
the Canada Council’s programmes will come
under increasingly close scrutiny, the Council
will still remain a solely responsible and ac-
countable for the validity of its policies.

Senator Desruisseaux: In the procedure
which has been followed, has it been the
custom for instance to submit proposals to
the government for its approval, or do you
abstain from making such proposals?

Mr. Boucher: We have been dealing in
this way for only two or three years. Only
the grant we shall be receiving next year
can be said to have been the subject of
anything resembling a submission to the
Treasury Board. Previously, the grants we
received from the government had been made
on the basis of recommendations addressed
to both Houses and approved on the basis of
what I would describe as very general state-
ments of the needs of the Council. But in
the case of next year’s grant, we have sub-
mitted something that perhaps comes close to
a departmental submission, with less details
than are provided by departments, but with an
explanation indicating that the Council was
engaged in the implementation of certain
programmes for which the Government had
already provided funds in the knowledge of
the use that was to be made of these monies,
and that the further implementation of these
programmes called for additional funds.

It is therefore quite clear that if the gov-
ernment and Parliament have provided us
with additional funds, they were aware—
perhaps not in detail, but in a general way—
of the uses to be made of such funds, though
perhaps not in as much detail as in the case
of a department. That raises the whole ques-
tion of the Council’s degree of autonomy,
considering its position as perhaps the most
unusual legal animal on the whole Canadian
scene.

Senator Desruisseaux: On page 6, you dis-
cuss the matter of a science policy for Canada.
Does this cover all the Canada Council’s
wishes concerning Canada’s future, or the
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building of the future if you will? Are these
all your recommendations?

Mr. Boucher: No.

Of course you will have noticed that there
are very few comments on the suggestions
put forward by the chairman of this com-
mittee. Our main purpose in this section was
to indicate that in our view, it is essential,
before going into specifics, to come to an
understanding on broad objectives. When
consideration is given to more specific sug-
gestions, the Council may have some com-
ments to offer. However, there are no com-
ments in this paper on the advantages of
having a department of science, or a social
science research institute. There are no rec-
ommendations of this kind at the present
stage.

Senator Desruisseaux: Thank you.
{English]

Senator Grosart: Is the Canada Council
grant a single vote in the Estimates?

Mr. Boucher: Yes, it is. It is also listed as a
grant.

Senator Grosart: Yes.

Senator Belisle: Can I ask a further ques-
tion?

The Chairman: Yes.

[{Translation]

Senator Belisle: Your requests are made
annually. Does the government, in granting
the funds and in accepting your request, in-
dicate that you must follow a certain policy,
Or%.

Mr. Boucher: No.

Senator Belisle: ...or are you allowed the
same degree of autonomy as you had in the
beginning, when the Council was set up?

Mr. Boucher: It must be said that the gov-
ernment does not necessarily accept our re-
quests, and that in this way it can take a
different view of the needs we have to face.
However, the government has so far made no
specific comments on the programmes we
are trying to implement. A year or two ago,
it endorsed the main lines of our programme
by granting us the exact amount we had in-
dicated was required for the implementation
of these programmes. They have not changed
since then, and we have had no comments
from the government.

I think the government would hesitate be-
fore attempting to comment on the validity
of the Canada Council’s present policy. I
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think it would rather tend to express its
agreement or disagreement through the level
of subsidies that it would be prepared to
recommend to the Houses.

The Chairman: Senator Bourget?
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